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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 

CENTRAL DIVISION 

FRIENDS OF THE CHILDREN'S POOL, a 
California nonprofit public benefit 
corporation, 

Petitioner, 

Attorneys for Petitioner Friends of the Children's Pool 

V. 

(1) Writ Of Mandate; 
_(2)._Preliminary-Equitable Relief; and 	- 
(3) Injunctive & Declaratory Relief. 

CASE NO: 

PETITION FOR:37-2013-000 34894-CU -WM-CTL  

CITY OF SAN DIEGO; and 
DOES 1 through 50, 

Respondents. 

[FACSIMILE SIGNATURE] 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This suit arises from Respondent City of San Diego's violation of the California 

Coastal Act (Public Resources Code, § 30000, et seq.), which prohibits development in the 

Coastal Zone without first obtaining a valid coastal permit issued by the California Coastal 

Commission. After the City failed to obtain a permit for additional development at the La Jolla 

Children's Pool, it decided to ignore the law and make the additional development without the 

required permits. 

THE PARTIES  

2. At all times relevant herein, Petitioner Friends of the Children's Pool was, and 

is, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation. 

/ / / / / 
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3. Petitioner is informed and believes, and thereupon alleges, that Respondent City 

of San Diego (the "City") is a California city whose actions alleged herein occurred in whole 

or in part within the County of San Diego, California. 

4. The true names, whether corporate, individual or otherwise of Respondents 

named herein as DOES 1 through 50, inclusive, are unknown to Petitioner who, therefore, sues 

these Respondents by fictitious names. Petitioner will seek leave to amend this Complaint to 

show their true names and capacities when they have been ascertained. 

5. Petitioner is informed and believes, and thereupon alleges, that DOES 1 through 

50 include individuals, corporations or other forms of business entities who worked in concert 

with or at the direction of the other Respondents to violate the Coastal Act as alleged herein. 

Petitioner does not know the identity of DOES 1 through 50, but upon ascertaining the identity 

or identities of these individuals or business entities, Petitioner will seek leave to amend this 

Complaint to identify more specifically DOES 1 through 50. 

6. As used herein, the term "Respondent" means Respondents and each of them, 

and any reference to an act of a Respondent means that such act was done by all Respondents 

and each of them, unless otherwise specifically stated. 

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS  

7. The Children's Pool, located along the rocky bluffs of the Pacific Ocean below 

the Casa de Mariana, is one of La Jolla's best known structures. Built in 1930 by Ellen 

Browning Scripps, the prominent philanthropist wanted to provide young swimmers with safe 

beach access, away from the dangerous ocean cross-currents. On June 15, 1931, the Governor 

of California signed legislation which granted the Children's Pool shoreline to the City of San 

Diego in trust, to be used "exclusively to public park, bathing pool for children, parkway, 

highway, playground, and recreational purposes, and to such other uses as may be incident to, 

or convenient-for the full enjoyment of, such purposes." Sixty years after its completion, 

however, the Children's Pool became the subject of a now infamous debate. 

/ / / / / 
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8. The debate involved a colony of harbor seals that has inhabited the beach since 

the mid-1990s. By 1999, the fecal contamination from over 100 seals rendered the beach a 

health hazard. People either supported the seal habitat or argued that the seals prevented 

swimming, diving, and use of the beach. On March 29, 1999, the San Diego City Council 

voted to install a rope barrier to separate the seals and the public. 

9. In March 2003, the California Coastal Commission notified the City Council 

that a coastal permit was required for the rope barrier at the Children's Pool beach. 

10. In 2004, the City Council removed the rope barrier and adopted a "joint use" 

policy. Joint use allowed the seals to remain, while members of the public continued to use the 

beach recreationally. Although the Children's Pool was never intended for use as a seal 

habitat, the Legislature later amended the trust in 2009 "to include in that list of uses and 

purposes a marine mammal park for the enjoyment and educational benefit of children." 

11. In April 2006 and December 2006, the Council passed resolutions directing that 

a rope barrier be placed at the Children's Pool during seal pupping season (generally accepted 

to be from December 15 to May 15). Between 2006 and 2009, the City of San Diego Park and 

Recreation Department applied each year for permits to place the rope bather during pupping 

season. 

12. On December 2, 2009, the City Hearing Officer approved Coastal Development 

Permit No. 701673 and Site Development Permit No. 701765 (collectively, the "Permit"), for 

the annual placement of the temporary rope bather during pupping season. In pertinent part, 

Permit established the following restrictions on the allowable dimensions of the rope bather 

and the lateral access: 

The installed rope length shall not exceed 130 feet, and a minimum three-foot 
opening shall be maintained from the post at the easterly most end of the rope to 
the nearest obstruction so as to create an opening for beach access. 

Consistent with these specifications, the map attached as Exhibit A to the Permit 

identified the maximum 130 foot rope, and the minimum three-foot access corridor to the 
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A true and correct copy of Coastal Development Permit No. 701673 and Site 

Development Permit No. 701675 is attached hereto as Exhibits "1." 

13. On May 17, 2010, the City Council passed a resolution directing the Mayor to 

seek an amendment to the Permit to "keep the rope barrier out your round at the Children's 

Pool." (Res. 305837, [R-2010-794].) The resolution did not direct the Mayor to seek any 

amendment extending the maximum rope length (130 feet) authorized by the Permit. 

14. On September 15, 2010, the City Hearing Officer approved two new amended 

permits pursuant to the City Council's resolution. These permits were identical to those 

originally granted, except that they now allowed a year round permit. 

15. The La Jolla Community Planning Association appealed the City Hearing 

Officer's approval of the year-round permit to the San Diego Planning Commission. Prior to 

hearing the appeal, the Park and Recreation Department submitted a new staff report to the 

Planning Commission. Without any prior authorization or direction from the City Council, the 

Park and Recreation Department unilaterally decided to make an additional change to the 

proposed, amended permit that would have increased the maximum length of the rope from 

130 feet to 152 feet. 

16. Despite the fact that the City Council had approved the 130 foot maximum rope 

length for the entire six years of the seasonal pupping permit's existence, and had never once 

authorized a different rope length, the Park and Recreation Department explained the basis for 

its unilateral modification in the staff report dated August 23, 2012: 

Earlier this year it was determined that there had been a measurement error 
regarding the length of the rope installations. While the approved Exhibit A 
associated with the current permit depicts a three-foot opening from the end of 
the rope installation to the rock outcropping at the easterly side of the pool, the 
length of the rope is shown as 130 feet. That is incorrect. The length of rope 
required to stretch from the seawall to a point that would create a three-foot 
opening is 152 feet. That error was noticed earlier this year and the installation 
in the field was shortened to the approved 130 feet. The proposed amendment to 
the Site Development Permit for the year-round rope would rectify that error, 
modifying the permit and the Exhibit A to reflect 152 feet accordingly. 

(August 23, 2012, City Staff Report, at p. 7.) 
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17. On September 27, 2012, the San Diego Planning Commission sustained the La 

Jolla Community Planning Association's appeal and denied the proposed permit amendment 

for a year-round, 152 foot rope bather. The Planning Commission specifically cited the 

increase to a 152 foot rope barrier as a basis for rejecting the proposed amendment. 

18. When the 130 foot rope barrier went up again for pupping season, newly elected 

Mayor Bob Filner held a press conference at the La Jolla Children's Pool on December 15, 

2012, promising to fight for a year-round permit and vowing to extend the rope barrier to 152 

feet. 

19. Six days later, on December 21, 2012, city employees of the Park and 

Recreation Department replaced the 130 foot rope bather specified in the Permit, with a longer 

152 foot rope barrier. 

20. On December 24, 2012, the City Attorney prepared a memorandum for the 

Mayor and City Council regarding a Potential Extension of Length of Seasonal Rope at 

Children's Pool. The memorandum states that the City Attorney had been asked "whether the 

previously approved 130-foot long seasonal rope at the Children's Pool beach may be extended 

to 152 feet, without further approvals being obtained, and what the potential consequences 

could be if such action is taken without further approvals." 

21. The memorandum advised that the Coastal Commission retains permit 

jurisdiction over the Children's Pool, and warned that "the City is without jurisdiction to 

process any amendments to the permit as it pertains to coastal development." 

22. The memorandum further advised that revisions to a permit under the San 

Diego Municipal Code require either substantial conformance review or a new application for 

an amended permit. 

23. On January 9, 2013, City staff recorded Document No. 2013-0017818, which 

consisted of amended versions of Coastal Development Permit No. 701673 and Site 

Development Permit No. 701765 that extended the length of the rope from 130 feet to 152 feet. 

Neither of these "amended" permits satisfied the mandatory rules and regulations necessary to 
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obtain a valid permit. 

24. On January 22, 2013, Ms. Kanani Brown, a coastal program analyst with the 

Coastal Commission, wrote a letter addressing these new "amended" permits. Ms. Brown's 

letter referred to the "amended" permits as "administratively correcting" the length of the rope 

barrier specified in the permits approved by the City on a January 21, 2010. Her letter states 

that "[Coastal] commission staff concurs with the city's administrative correction and no action 

is required by the [Coastal] commission." 

25. Unaware of the City's post hoc efforts to cover up a flagrant (and perhaps 

willful) disregard of the permitting procedures, Petitioner wrote to the Coastal Commission 

and the City complaining about the unauthorized the decision to extend the length of the rope 

barrier, and demanding that the rope barrier be returned to its prior condition to conform to the 

clear requirements of the permits. 

26. On February 4, 2013, Petitioner wrote to the Coastal Commission and objected 

to Ms. Kanani Brown's January 22, 2013, letter as an improper and invalid substitute for 

complying with the Coastal Commission's permit amendment procedures. 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION  

(Preliminary Equitable Relief [Pub. Res. Code, § 30803] — Against the City of San Diego) 

27. Petitioner incorporates by reference as though set forth in full herein each of the 

preceding allegations of paragraphs 1 through 26 of the Petition. 

28. Section 30600 of the Coastal Act requires that "any person, as defined in 

Section 21066, wishing to perform or undertake any development in the coastal zone ... shall 

obtain a coastal development permit." (Pub. Res. Code, § 3600, subd. (a).) "Persons" under 

this section includes cities, like San Diego. (Pub. Res. Code, § 21066.) Thus, the City of San 

Diego has a mandatory duty to secure a coastal development permit before undertaking any 

development in a coastal zone. 

/ / / / / 
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29. The "coastal zone" is that land specified on maps identified and set forth in 

Section 17 of Chapter 1330 of the Statutes of 1975-1976 Regular Session enacting the Coastal 

Act at Division 20 of the Public Resources Code (Division 20 is hereafter referred to as the 

"Coastal Act"). In significant estuarine, habitat and recreational areas, it extends inland to the 

first major ridgeline parallel to the sea or five miles from the mean high tide line of the sea, 

whichever is less. Here, the Children's Pool is located in the coastal zone. 

30. "Development" subject to the permit requirements of the Coastal Act is defined 

therein at Section 30106 as including the "placement or erection of any solid material or 

structure...." Here, the development is the installation of 152 foot rope barrier installed at the 

La Jolla Children's Pool that occurred on December 21, 2012. (Pub. Res. Code, § 30106.) 

31. No permit authorizes the placement or erection of a 152 foot rope barrier at the 

Children's Pool. In fact, the applicable permits specifically limit the rope barrier to a 

maximum of 130 feet. By installing a 152 foot rope barrier the City has undertaken a 

development without a valid coastal development permit in violation of Section 30600 of the 

Coastal Act. 

32. Section 30803 provides that "any person may maintain an action for declaratory 

and equitable relief to restrain any violation" of the Coastal Act. On a prima facie showing of 

a violation of the Coastal Act, "preliminary equitable relief shall be issued to restrain any 

further violation of this division." No bond shall be required for an action under this section. 

(Pub. Res. Code, § 30803.) 

33. Because (1) Petitioner is a person entitled to bring an action under Section 

30803; and (2) the City violated the Coastal Act by undertaking development, i.e. installation 

of a 152 foot rope barrier at the Children's Pool, without a Coastal Development Permit, in 

violation of Section 30600, subdivision (a), of the Coastal Act, than preliminary equitable 

relief shall be issued to restrain any further violation. 

/ / / / / 
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34. 	Specifically, Petitioner requests a temporary restraining order and preliminary 

injunction ordering the City to remove the 152 foot rope, and enjoining any further 

unpermitted development at the Children's Pool pending the final resolution of this case. 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION  

(Peremptory Writ of Mandate 
[Code Civ. Proc., § 1084, et. seq.] — Against the City of San Diego) 

35. Petitioner incorporates by reference as though set forth in full herein each of the 

preceding allegations of paragraphs 1 through 34 of the Petition. 

36. The City has, and had, a mandatory duty to exercise its powers in accordance 

with the law. 

37. By unilaterally extending the length of rope barrier beyond the maximum 

authorized length in the permits, the City has breached this mandatory duty. Approvals given 

or actions taken by an agency that do not conform to the law are in excess of the agency's 

powers, and void under the doctrine of ultra vires. (See e.g., Trancas Property Owners Ass 'n. 

v. City of Malibu, 138 Cal, App. 4th 172 (2006) (settlement agreement approving development 

without compliance with public noticed hearing requirements was void).) 

38. But for the City's unilateral extension of the rope barrier beyond the maximum 

length authorized under the Permit, it would be required to comply with the procedures for 

amending the Permit under both Coastal Commission regulations and its own municipal code. 

In both cases, approval would require either a public hearing or public notice of the proposed 

action, prior to any approval of the proposed amendment. Each avenue for approval would 

allow Petitioner (and any other interested parties) an opportunity to participate and object to 

the requested amendments before any decision was made, and certainly before the rope was 

actually extended. 

39. The City failed to satisfy the statutory requirements for validly amending the 

Permit before it extended the rope barrier, and these requirements remain unsatisfied to this 

very day. 
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a. With respect to the coastal development permit, the Coastal Commission 

retains permit jurisdiction over land, like the Children's Pool, that was granted to the 

City in trust, and the City is without jurisdiction to process amendments to the Permit. 

(Pub. Res. Code, § 30519, subd. (b).) Hence, because the Executive Director of the 

Coastal Commission has made no determination that the proposed amendments were 

either immaterial or material, and because the public was never given notice and an 

opportunity to object to the proposed amendments, the proposed amendments fail to 

satisfy the requirements of Coastal Commission regulations. (Cal. Code Regs. title 14, 

§ 13166.) 

b. With respect to the site development permit, the City did not apply for a 

permit amendment necessary to extend the maximum length of the rope barrier, and no 

such amendment has been approved. (SDMC § 126.0113.) The City could not make 

these amendments by resort to the substantial conformance process, because the 

development required no revisions to comply with the express language of any permit 

or map. Further, the elements of a valid process two decision were not met because, 

inter alia, the City never mailed Notice of Future Decision as required under San Diego 

Municipal Code section 112.0302(b), and thus did not allow Petitioner or the public an 

opportunity to object and be heard on the matter. 

40. 	By circumventing these statutory procedures, the City's unilateral decision to 

extend the rope bather destroyed the public's opportunity to be heard. If the City had 

complied with the procedures for amending these permits, Petitioner and other members of the 

public could have raised, inter alia, the same objections that persuaded the Planning 

Commission to reject the City's last effort to amend the permit for an extended rope barrier. 

Instead, the City flouted the rule of law and denied Petitioner and the public the right to prior 

notice of these amendments, and the opportunity to object and participate in the decision. 

/ / / / / 

/ / / / / 

MARKS, FINCH, 
THORNTON 8 BFURD. IL!' 

4747 Executive 
Drive - Suite 7C0 

San Diego, CA 92121 
(859) 737.3100 

PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDATE 



41. Accordingly, Petitioner has a direct and substantial beneficial interest in this 

action that falls within the zone of interest of those statutory procedures enacted to allow the 

public, including Petitioner, to object to proposed amendments to the permitted rope barrier. 

42. Petitioner has no plain, speedy, and adequate remedy in the ordinary course of 

law, other than the relief sought in this petition, in that Petitioner has, and had, no 

administrative avenue by which to enjoin the City's ultra vires development. 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Injunctive and Declaratory Relief- Against the City of San Diego) 

43. Petitioner incorporates by reference as though set forth in full herein each of the 

preceding allegations of paragraphs 1 through 42 of the Petition. 

44. An actual controversy has arisen and now exists relating to the rights and duties 

of Petitioner and the City. Petitioner contends that the City's unilateral extension of the rope 

barrier is illegal and invalid, and that the City acted beyond its powers by engaging in 

development without the required permit. The City, on the other hand, contends that its 

unilateral extension of the rope barrier is legal, valid, and enforceable, and that the City 

properly exercised its powers when it unilaterally extended the rope barrier. 

45. Petitioner is entitled to declaratory judgment that the City's act of extending the 

rope bather is illegal and invalid, and that the City acted beyond its powers when it did so. 

46. Petitioner is also entitled to a permanent injunction directing the City to remove 

the extended rope barrier and return the rope barrier within the limits prescribed by the permit, 

and to enjoin the City from further disregarding the procedures for legitimately amending these 

permits as required under Coastal Commission regulations and its own municipal code. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

Accordingly, Petitioner respectfully prays for relief as follows: 

1. 	That the Court issue a peremptory writ of mandate, ordering the City to set 

aside the invalid amendments to the maximum length of the rope barrier as authorized by the 

Permit, and to return the rope bather at the Children's Pool to its prior length as authorized by 
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By: 
BERN 

Attorneys 
ING 

ner Friends the Children's etiti 

the Permit; 

2. That the Court declare the respective rights and duties of Petitioners and the 

City, and that by such declaration and judgment, it be declared that the City's act of extending 

the rope bather beyond the maximum length authorized by the Permit is illegal and invalid, 

and that the City acted beyond its powers in making this extension; 

3. That the Court grant a temporary restraining order and a preliminary injunction 

directing the City to return the rope bather to its previous length as authorized by the Permit, 

and to cease any further development of the Children's Pool, for the duration of this action; 

4. That the Court grant a permanent injunction directing the City to return the rope 

barrier to its previous length as authorized by the permit, and to enjoin the City from further 

developing the Children's Pool in any manner not authorized by a valid permit or permit 

amendment; 

5. That the Court grant Petitioner its costs incurred in this litigation and reasonable 

attorney's fees pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure section 1021.5, and California 

'Public Resources Code section 30803; and 

6. For such other relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

DATED: February 14, 2013 	 Respectfully submitted, 

MARKS, FINCH, THORNTON & BAIRD, LLP 

1828.002/34L6010.DOCX.cdc 

MARKS, FINCH, 
THORNTON 8 BAIRD, LLP 

4747 Executive 
Drive - Suite 700 

San Diego, CA 92121 
(858) 7374100 

  

11 

 

PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDATE 

 

  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 



VERIFICATION  

I, John Leek, am an officer of Friends of the Children's Pool, and have read the 

foregoing Petition for Writ of Mandate; Preliminary Equitable Relief; and Injunctive & 

Declaratory Relief and know its contents. 

The matters stated in the foregoing document are true of my own knowledge, or based 

on information and belief, and as to those matters I believe them to be true. 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct to the best of my 

knowledge. 

Executed in San Diego, California on this  /9 th day of February 2013. 

12 

I 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

/42  
JOHN LEEK 

MARKS, FINCH, 
THORNTON a BAIRD. LIP 

4747 Executive 
Diva • Stile 700 

San Diego, CA92121 
(858)7374100 

PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDATE 



EXHIBIT 1 



 

THE ORIGINAL•OF THIS DOCUMENT 
%As RECORDED ON APR 16, 2010 

DOCUMENT NUMBER 2010-0189907 
DAVID L BUTLER COUNTY RECORDER 

SAN DIEGO COUNTY RECORDERS OFFICE 
TIME: 11:44 AM 	• 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
CITY OF SAN DIEGO 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
PERMIT INTAKE, MAIL STATION 501 

  

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE 
JOB ORDER NUMBER: 4900 

COASTAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT NO. 701673 
SITE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT NO. 701765 

La Jolla Children's-Pool Rope Barrier PTS No. 194347 

. This Coastal Development Permit/Site Development Permit is granted by. the City of San Diego 
to the City of San Diego Park and Recreation Department, Owner/Perrnittee, pursuant to San 
Diego Municipal Code [SDMC] sections 126.0718 and. 143.0126. The site is located at the 
Children's Pool, west of Coast Boulevard, near leaner Street in the Coastal Overlay zone of the 
La Jolla Community Plan. 

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this. Permit, permission is granted to 
Owner/Permittee to install a rope barrier, annually, during seal pupping season, December -15th, 

- through May 15 th  as described and identified by size, dimension, quantity, type, andlocation on 
the approved exhibits [Exhibit "NJ dated January 21, 2010, on file in the Development Services 
Department. 

The project shall include: 

Rope, supporting posts, support post footings and signs 	. 

All structures shall be maintained in place approximately as shown in exhibits [Exhibit "A"1 
dated January 21, 2010, on file in the Development Services Department.. 

STANDARD REQUIREMENTS: 

I. 	This permit mint be utilized by May 15 th, 2010. Failure to utilize and maintain utilization 
of this permit as described in the SDMC will automatically void the permit unless an Extension 
of Time has been granted. Any such Extension of Time must meet all SDMC requirements and 
applicable guidelines in affect at the time the extension is considered by the appropriate decision 
maker. 
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2. This Coastal Development Permit shall become effective on the eleventh working day 
following receipt by the California Coastal Commission of the Notice of Final Action following 
all appeals. 

No permit for the construction, occupancy or operation of any facility or improvement 
described herein shall be granted, nor shall any activity authorized by this Permit be conducted 
on the premises until: 

a. The Owner/Permittee signs and returns the Permit to the Development Services 
Department; and 

b. The Permit is recorded in the Office of the San Diego County Recorder. 

4. Unless this Permit has been revoked by the City of San Diego the property included by 
reference within this Permit shall be used only for the purposes and under the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Permit unless otherwise authorized by the Development Services . 
Department. 

5. This Permit is a covenant running with the subject property and shall be binding upon the 
Owner/Permittce and any successOr or successors, and the interests of any successoi shall,be 
subject to each and every condition set out in this Permit and all referenced documents. 

6. The continued use of this Permit shall be subject to the regulations of this and any other 
applicable governmental agency. 

7. Issimnce of this Permit by the City of San Diego does not authorize the Owner/Pennittee 
for this permit to violate any Federal, State or City laws, ordinances, regulations or policies 
including, but not limited to, the Endangered Species Act of 1973 [ESA] and any amendments 
thereto (16 U.S.C. § 1531 et seq.). 

8. All of the conditions contained in this Permit have been tignsidered and have been 
determined to be necessary in order to make the findings required for this Permit It is the intent 
of the City that the holder of this Permit be required to comply with each and every condition in 
order to be. afforded the special rights which the holder of the Permit is entitled as a result of 
obtaining this Permit. 

• In the event that any condition of this Permit, on a legal challenge by the Owner/Permittee 
of this Permit, is found or held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable, 
or unreasonable, this Permit shall be void. However, in such an event, the Owner/Permittee shall 
have the right, by paying applicable processing fees, to bring a request for a new permit without 
the "invalid" conditions(s) back to the discretionary body ,vhich approved the Permit for a 
determination by that body as to whether all of the findings necessary for the iseuance of the 
proposed perinit can still be made in the absence of the "invalid" condition(s). Such hearing shall 
be a hearing de novo and the discretionary body shall have the absolute right to approve, 
disapprove, or modify the proposed permit and the condition(s) contained therein. . 
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PLANNING/DESIGN REQUIREMENTS: 

9. All debris caused by construction must be removed from the site and disposed of 
appropriately. 

10. All materials shall be maintained and managed so as to prevent them from entering 
sensitive areas including the coastal waters. Placement shall be maintained in location identified 
on Exhibit "A," during the identified time periods. 

11. The westernmost end of the rope shall be attached to the seawall not greater than 82 feet 
from the beginning of the seawall at the base of the stairs leading down from near the lifeguard 
station. The installed rope length shnll not exceed 130 feet, and a in 	three-foot opening 
shall be maintained from the post at the easterlymost end of the rope to the nearest obstruction so 
as to create an opening for beach access. The rope shall not be placed below the Mean High Tide - 
Line. 

12. The rope installation shall not use more than four posts, and each post shall not exceed four 
feet in height The posts may have an 18-inch by 24-inch City of San Diego informational sign 
attached 

13. Installed rope height shall not exceed four feet 

14. Rope diameter shall not exceed one half inch in diameter. 

APPROVED by the Planning Commission of the City of San Diego, on January 21, 2010, 
Resolution No. 4562-PC, 
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Coastal Development Permit No. 701673, Site Development Permit No, 701765 
January 21, 2010 

AUTHENTICATED BY THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT 

, 

'17 	(-Lel,/  
Development Project Matiager 

NOTE: Notary acknowledgment 
must be attached per Civil Code 
section 1189 et seq. 

The undersigned Owner/Permittee, by execution hereof, agrees to each and every condition of 
this Permit and promises to perform each and every obligation of Ovmer/Perrnittee hereunder. 

Pirk and Recreation Department 
City of San Diego 

Owner/Pennitte,e 

Sçpe LoMe *co 
hector / 

NOTE: Notary acknowledgments 
must be attached per Civil Code 
section 1189 et seq. 

Morris E. Dye 
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State .of California 

County of  Ada/  

Opiprei#20/2  before me, 
Date 	 _,..,A • w i 	/ 	He 	 0156-et 

. 	
Cr US/ 	

•
171);(22rnek:157  0 I (:11241—"VL.— )  

blrone(e) Or Signer e 
personally appears 

' 

MARIBEL A. MARTINEZ 
	 — 

Commission. 1736157 
Notary Public - California 

Sari Diego County • k 
' 	Lity.coire,  

Place Notes/ Seel Above 

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to 
be the person(s) whose name(s) Ware subscribed to the 
within Instrument and acknowledged to me that 
-he/she/they executed the same in lifs/her/their authorized 

• capacity(les), and that by hlothcritheir signature(s) on the 
• Instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of 
• which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws 
•of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph Is 
true and correct. 

• 
.WITNES 	and an -offic seal. 

Signature  add r 
SIgnetue6 	Isty Puttla 

OPTIONAL 
Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons reping on the document 

and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document 

Desoription of Attached D cpment 

*vita Atts.;ase/mf7 Title or Type of Docume 	(1  
02/ ;70  22 	Number of Pages: 	A/  
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Document Da
r 

Capacity(tes) Claimed by Signer(s) 

Signer's Name: 	  
O Individual 
O Corporate Officer ltle(s); 	  
O Partner —Q Limited 0 General 
O Attorney in Fact 
O Trustee 
O Guardian or Conservator 
O Other: 	  

Signer Is Representing' 

Signer's Name' 	  
0 Individual 
0 Corporate Officer — TItle(s): 	 
0 Partner — 0 Limited 0 General 
0 Attorney in Fact 
0 Trustee 
0 Guardian or Conservator 
o Other: 	  

Signer Is Representing: 	  

et04. 	 vs' -erve,C• 
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CITY OF SAN DIEGO 
RESOLUTION NO, 4562-PC 

COASTAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT NO. 701673 
• 	SITE DEVELOPMENT PERM:ET NO. 701765 

La Jolla Children's Pool Annual Rope Barrier PTS No. 194347 

WHEREAS, the City of San biego Park and Recreation Department, Owner/Permittee, applied to the 
City of San Diego for a permit to erect a rope barrier (including support posts and foundations), during 
seal pupping season, each year from December 15th to May 15th;  and 

WHEREAS, the project is located at the La Jolla Children's Pool, west of Coast Boulevard, near leaner 
' Street, La Jolla, within the Coastal Overlay Zone (Coastal Commission Appeal Jurisdiction) and the La 

Jolla Community Planning Area; and 

WHEREAS, the Hearing Officer approved Coastal Development Permit No. 701673 and Site 
Development Permit No. 701765 on December 2, 2009; and 

WHEREAS, the Hearing Officer's approval was appealed to the Planning Commission on. December 7, 
2009; and 

WHEREAS, on January 21, 2010, the Planning Commission considered the appeal the Hearing Officer's 
approval of Coastal Development Permit No. 701673. and Site Development Permit No. 701765 (as 
described in and by reference to the approved Exhibits "A" and corresponding conditions of approval for 
the associated Coastal Development Permit No. 701673 and Site Development Permit No. 701765) 
pursuant to the Land Development Code of the City of San Diego; NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of San Diego as follows: 

That the City of San Diego adopts the following written Findings, dated January 21, 2010. 

FINDINGS: 

Fihdings for Coastal Development Permit - Section 126.0708  

I. 	The proposed coastal development will not encroach upon any enisting 
physical access way that is legally used by the public or any proposed public accessway 
identified in a Local Coastal Program land use plan; and the proposed coastal development 
will enhance and protect public views to and along the ocean and other scenic coastal areas 
as specified in the Local Coastal Program land use plan; and 

The project is located on the sand of the La Jolla Children's Pool west of Coast Boulevard, near Jenner 
Street, in La Jolla. The project would include the rope barrier supported by poles, with pole foundations 
buried in the sand above the Mean High Tide Line. A rope barrier would be erected, and stretch from 
near the concrete access stairs on the east side of the beach to the sea wall on the west side, as shown on 
Exhibit "A." 
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The area above the Children's Pool is identified as a Viewshed area in the La Jolla Community Plan and 
Local Coastal Program Land Use Plan. The proposed rope would be placed at a height not exceeding 
four feet and the rope would not exceed one half-inch in diameter. Given this height and diameter, the 
rope would not block any public views, as identified in the La Jolla Community Plan and Local Coastal 
Program Land Use Plan. While the proposed rope barrier would provide a buffer between humans and 
seals, during the seal pupping season each year from December 15th to May 15 th, the beach would remain 
open for public use and swimming would be allowed. Swimming may not be recommended due to 	. 
bacteria levels possibly exceeding health standards, but the rope is not intended to prevent access to the 
sand beach or the ocean. In addition, existing vertical access (concrete stairs) would remain unchanged 
by the project. The La Jolla Community Plan does not envision the Children's POol as an improved 
recreation area, and, therefore, the placement of the rope would not conflict the with long range 
recreation plans for the area. Given that the sand beach and ocean would remain open to the public while 
the rope would be in place, that the rope's location and type of rope used would not block any identified 
public views at the Children's Pool, and the placement of the rope would not conflict with future plans 
for the Children's Pool ar6a, the proposed coastal development will not encroach upon any existing 
physical access way that is legally used by the public or any proposed public accebsway identified in a 
Local Coastal Program land use plan, and the proposed coastal development will enhance and protect 
public views to and along the ocean and other scenic coastal areas as specified in the Local Coastal 
Program landbse plan. 	" 

	

2. 	The proposed coastal development will not adversely affect environmentally 
sensitive lands; and 

The adjacent Coastal Beach and Coastal Bluff are the environmentally sensitive resources potentially 
affected by the project. The proposed installation of the rope includes hand digging small holes (less than 
18 inches deep) in the sand, above the Mean High Tide Line, placing the foundation portion of the rope 
supports in the holes and covering the foundations with sand. This would allow for the rope bather to be 
in place during the' annual seal pupping season, each year from December 15th to May 15', At no time 
would the rope touch the adjacent Coastal Bluff. Proposed permit conditions would require that any 
debris caused by construction, must be removed from the site and disposed of appropriately, Permit 
conditions would also require that all materials shall be maintained and managed so as to prevent them 
from entering sensitive areas, including the adjacent coastal waters. Placement would be required to be 
maintained in location identified on Exhibit "A," during the identified time periods. As the project 
involves digging relatively shallow holes in the beach sand above the Mean High Tide Line, permit 
conditions would prohibit any debris or construction materials from entering the ocean, and permit 
conditions would also prohibit the project affecting the adjacent Coastal Bluff, the proposed coastal 
development will not adversely affect environmentally sensitive lands. 

	

3. 
	The proposed coastal development is in conformity with the certified Local 

Coastal Program land use plan and complies with all regulations of the certified 
Implementation Program; and 

The project would include the rope barrier supported by poles, with the pole foundations buried in the 
sand above the Mean High Tide Line. A rope barrier would be erected, and stretch from near the concrete 
access stairs on the east side of the beach to the sea wall on the west side, as shown on Exhibit "A." 

The area above the Children's Pool is identified as a Viewshed area in the La Jolla Community Plan and 
Local Coastal Program Land Use Plan, The proposed rope would be placed at a height not exceeding_ 
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four feet and would not exceed one half-inch in diameter. Given this height and diameter, the rope would 
not block any public views as identified in the La Jolla Community Plan and Local Coastal Program Land 
Use Plan. While the proposed rope bather would provide a buffer between humans and seals during the 
annual seal pupping season, each year from December 15th to May 15 th, the beach would remain open for 
public use and swimming wouldhe allowed. Swimming may not be recommended due to bacteria levels 
possibly exceeding health standards, but the rope is not intended to prevent access to the sand beach or 
the ocean. In addition, existing vertical access (concrete stairs) would remain unchanged by the projeCt. 
Given that the sand beach and ocean would remain open to the public while the rope would be in place, 
and that the rope's location and type of rope used would not block any identified public views at the 
Children's Pool, the proposed coastal development is in conformity with the certified Local Coastal 
Program land use plan and complies with all regulations of the certified Implementation Program. 

4. 	For every Coastal Development Permit issued for any coastal development 
between the nearest public road and the sea or the shoreline of any body of water located 
within the Coastal Overlay Zone the coastal development is in conformity with the public 
access and public recreation policies of Chapter 3 of the California Coastal Act 

The project would include the rope barrier supported by poles, with the pole foundations buried in The • 
sand above the Mean High Tide Line. A rope barrier would be erected, and stretch from near the concrete 
access stairs on the east side of the beach to the sea wall on the west side, as shown on Exhibit "Ai' 

Section 30211 of the California Coastal Act requires that no development interfere with the public's right 
of access to the sea, the use of dry sand and the use of rock coastal beaches up to the first line of 
terrestrial vegetation. The purpose and intent of Section 30211 is ensure that the public can access the sea 
and its associated rock coastal beaches.. The purpose and intent of the proposed rope is to create a buffer 
between the public utilizing the sand beach and accessing the sea at the Children's Pool, and the seals, as 
they are hauled out on the sand during the annual seal pupping season from Decemberl5 th  to May 15th. 
The rope is not intended to keep the public from reaching either the beach or the sea a the Children's 
Pool. The public will be able to enter the sea at the Children's Pool while the rope is installed, due to a 
three-foot opening that would be maintained by permit condition.. In addition, signage that is posted at 
the Children's Pool indicates that the beach is open to the public. Therefore, the proPosed rope would 
not interfere with the public's right of access to the sea, the use of dry sand and the use of rock coastal 
beaches up to the first line of terrestrial vegetation as described in Section 30211. 

Section 30220 of the California Coastal Act requires +bat coastal areas suited for water-oriented 
recreational activities that cannot be provided at inland water areas, be protected for such uses. The rope 
barrier would not prevent the use of the Children's Pool for recreational activities and no recreational 
activities are planned for the Children's Pool area The rope is not intended to keep the public from 
reaching either the beach. or die sea at the Children's Pool. The public would be able to enter the sea at 
the Children's Pool whilethe rope has been installed. In addition, signage that is posted at the Children's 
Pool indicates that the beach is open for public use. 

As the project would not block public access and the beach and ocean would remain open for public 
recreation, the project is in conformity with the public access and public recreation policies of Chapter 3 
of the California Coastal Act. 

Page 3 of 7 



Site Development Permit - Section 126.0504  

A . 	Findings for all Site Development Permits 

1. 	The proposed development will not adversely affect the applicable land use plan; 

The project would include the rope bather supported by poles, with the pole foundations buried in the 
sand above the Mean High Tide Line. A rope barrier would, be erected, and stretch from near the concrete 
access stairs on the east side of the beach to the sea wall on the west side, as shown on Exhibit "k" 

One of the goals of the Community Facilities, Parks, and Services Element of the LJCP (p. 113) is to, 
"Ensure that all new and existing public facilities are designed and developed in a manner that will not 
contribute any adverse impacts to the environmentally sensitive areas of La Jolla." The Children's Pool is 
located in an area designated as Environmentally Sensitive Lands containing Coastal Beaches and 
Coastal Bluffs. The proposed rope installation would have no significant affect °neither of these 
resources. The proPosed rope installation would:include hand digging holes in the sand (not exceeding 18 
inches in depth), placing the foundation portion of the rope supports in the holes and covering the 
foundations up with sand, Proposed permit conditions would require that any debris caused by 
construction, must be removed from the site and disposed of appropriately, and would also require that all 
materials shall be maintained and managed so as to prevent them from entering sensitive areas, including 
the coastal waters. Placement would be required to be maintained in location identified on Exhibit "A," 
during the identified time period. The La Jolla Community Plan also calls for the protection of public 
views.. Theproposed rope would be placed at a height not exceeding four feet and would not exceed one 
half-inch in diameter. Given this height and diameter, the rope would not block any public views. In 
addition, theta Jolla Community Plan does not envision the Children's Pool as an improved recreation 
area, and, therefore, the placement of the rope would not conflict the with long range recreation plans for 
the area. As the project would not have any adverse impacts on the Coastal Beach or the Coastal Bluffs, 
and the project would not negatively affect any public views or recreation plans foethe area, the proposed 
development will not adversely affect the aPplicable land use plan. 

2. 	The proposed development will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, and welfare; 
and 

The project would include the rope barrier supported by poles, with the pole foundations buried in the 
sand above the Mean High Tide Line. A rope bather would be erected, and stretch from near the concrete 
access stairs on the east side of the beach to the sea wall on the west side, as shown on Exhibit "A." 

The primary objective of the proposed rope installation is to serve as a buffer between humans and seals 
during the annual seal pupping Season, December 15 th  to May 15th. Lifeguards advise beachgoers to 
avoid unattended seal pups, as a pup's mother may be foraging and conflicts could arise upon a mother's 
return. "Users are also advised not to place themselves between a seal mother and her pup. While the 
beach is open to public use, and beachgoers may pass the rope to enter the beach, the rope's presence 
serves as . a caution, and allows users to read signaae warning them that it is unlawful to harass the seals, 
and that the water may cause illness due to bacteria levels that may exceed health standards. The slim also 
informs users that swimming is allowed, but is not recommended, and that the beach is open for public 
use. As the project would create a safety buffer between humans and seals, and would provide 

Page 4 of 7 



information to the beach-going public regarding potential health hazards, the project would not be 
detrimental to the public health, safety, and welfare. 

3. 	The proposed development will comply with the applicable regulations of the Land 
Development Code. 

The project would include the rope bather supported by poles, with the pole foundations buried in the 
sand above the Mean High Tide Line, A rope barrier would be erected, and stretch from near the concrete 
access stairs on the east side of the beach to the sea wall on the west side, as shown on Exhibit "A." 

Land Development Code regulations require that the construction of a project potentially affecting an 
environmentally sensitive resource, result it minimum disturbance to that resonrce. The proposed rope 
installation would include digging shallow holes for each post footing and covering them with the sand. 
Standard, half-inch cord would then be strung between the posts. Informational signage would be 
mounted to the posts to provide the public with safety information. In addition, the height of the rope 
would not exceed four feet, and no public views would be obstructed. None of these activities would 
significantly disturb the Coastal Beach or Coastal Bluff. As such, the proposed development would 
result in minimum disturbance of the environnaentally sensitive lands, and, therefore, would comply with 
the Land Development Code :  

B. 	Supplemental Findings--Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
• 

1. 	The site is physically suitable for the design and siting of the proposed development and the 
development will result in minimum disturbance to environmentally sensitive lands; 

The project would include the rope barrier supported by poles, with the pole foundations buried in the 
sand above the Mean High Tide Line. A rope barrier would be erected, and stretch from near the concrete 
access stairs on the east side of the beach to the sea wall on the west side, as shown on Exhibit "A." 

The proposed project site is the sand at the Children's Pool beach. There is ample sand at the beach to 
allow the rope support posts to be placed in holes that would.be  hand dug in the sand, and to cover up the 
post foundations with the sand when the installation is complete. The proposed rope installation would 
include digging shallow holes for each post footing and covering/them with the sand. Standard, half-inch 
cord would then be strung between the posts. Informational si7age would be mounted to the posts to 
provide the public with safety information. In addition, the height of the rope wouldnot exceed four feet, 
and no public views would be obstructed. None of these activities would significantly disturb the Coastal 
Beach or Coastal Bluff resources. As the site can readily accommodate theinstallafion of the rope barrier ' 
project with minimal disturbance to the Children's Pool beach, and neither the Coastal Beach nor the 
Coastal Bluff would be neuatively affected by the project, the site is physically suitable for the design and 
siting of the proposed development and the development will result in minimum disturbance to 
environmentally sensitive lands. 
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2. 	The proposed development will minimize the alteration of natural land forms and will not 
result in undue risk from geologic and erosional forces, flood hazards, or fire hazards; 

The project would include the rope barrier supported by poles, with the pole foundations buried in the 
sand above the Mean High Tide Line, A rope barrier would be erected, and stretch from near the'concrete 
access stairs on the east side of the beach to the sea wall on the west side, as shown on Exhibit "AI' 

The proposed rope installation would include digging shallow holes (not exceeding 18 inches in depth) • 
for each post footing and covering them with the sand. The rope would be plaged above the Mean High 

• Tide Line and, as such, would not create erosional conditions, No geologic forces are expected to be 
• factors with this type of development, and because no structures are proposed, no flood or fire hoznrds are 

anticipated. Therefore, the proposed development will minimize the alteration of natural landforms and 
will not result in undue risk from geologic and erosional forces, flood hazards, or fire hazards, 

	

3. 	The proposed development will be sited and designed to prevent adverse impacts on any 
adjacent environmentally sensitive lands; 

The project would include the rope barrier supported by poles, with the pole foundations buried in the 
sand above the Mean High Tide Line. A rope barrier would be erected, and stretch from near the concrete 
access stairs on the east side of the beach to the sea wall on the west side, as shown on Exhibit "A." 

The propoied installation of the rope would include digging shallow holes (not exceeding 1S inches in 
.depth) in the sand, placing the foundation portion of the rope supports in the hales and coyering the . 

• foundations up with sand. The rope will be installed in dry sand above the Mean High Tide Line, 
ensuring. the project can be installed and removed with minimal affect on the Coastal Beach and Coastal 
Bluff. In addition, proposed permit conditions would require that any debris caused by construction to be 

.removed from the site and disposed - of appropriately. Permit conditions would also require that all 
materials shall be maintained and managed so as to prevent them from entering sensitive areas, including 
the coastal waters. Placement would be required to be maintained in location identified on Exhibit "A," 
during the identified time period. Therefore, the proposed development would be sited and designed to 
prevent adverse impacts on any adjacent environmentally sensitive lands. 

	

4. 	The proposed development will be consistent with the City of San Diego's Multiple Species 
Conservation Program (MSCP) Subarea Plan; 

The project would include the rope barrier supported by poles, with the pole foundations buried in the 
sand above the Mean High Tide Line, A rope barrier would be erected, and stretch from near the concrete 
access stairs on the east side of the beach to the sea wall on the west side, as shown on Exhibit "A," 

The project is not located in or near the Multiple Species Conservation Program (MSCP) Subarea. 
Therefore, the proposed development will be consistent with the City of San Diego's Multiple Species 
Conservation Program (MSCP) Subarea Plan 

Page 6 of 7 



5. The proposed development will not contribute to the erosion of public beaches or adversely 
impact local shoreline sand supply; and 

The project would include-the rope barrier supported by poles, with the pole foundations buried in the 
sand above the Mean High Tide Line. A rope barrier would be erected, and stretch from near the concrete 
access stairs on the east side of the beach to the sea wall on the west side, as shown on Exhibit "A." 

The rope barrier pole foundations would be placed in thy sand above the Mean High Tide Line. As such, 
the project would not create erosional conditions. Sand removed to hand dig the holes for pole 
installation would be used to cover the foundations, and therefore, sand would not be removed from the 
Children's Pool Beach as a result of the project. Therefore, the proposed development will not contribute 
to the erosion of public beaches or adversely impact local shoreline sand supply. 

6. The nature and extent of mitigation required as a condition of the permit is reasonably 
related to, and calculated to alleviate, negative impacts created by the proposed 
development. 

The project would include the rope barrier supported by polei, with the pole foundations buried in the 
sand above the Mean High Tide Line. A rope barrier would be erected, and stretch from nearthe concrete 
access stairs on the east side of the beach to the sea wall on the west side, as shown on Exhibit "A." 

NoMitigation is required of this project Therefore, the nature and extent of mitigation required as'a 
condition of the permit is reasonably related to, and calculated to alleviate, negative impacts created by 
the proposed development. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, based on the -findings hereinbefore adopted by the City of 
San Diego, Coastal Development Permit No. 701673 and Site Development Permit No. 701765 
is hereby GRANTED by the City of San Diego to the referenced Owner/Permittee, in the farm, exhibits, 
teams and conditions as set forth in Coastal Development Permit No. 701673 and Site Development 
Permit No. 701765, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

Morris E. Dye 
Development Project Manager 
Development Services 

Adopted on: January 21, 2010 

Job Order No. 4900 

cc: 	Legislative Recorder, Planning Department 
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ASSESSOR/RECORDER/COUNTY CLERK 

RECORDER/COUNTY CLERK'S OFFICE 
1600 Pacific Highway, Suite 260 

P.O. Box 121750* San Diego, CA 92112-1750 
TeL (619)238-8158 4  Fax (619) 557-4155 

BATCH #: 283131620100416 

DOCUMENT WS: 

RECORDING DATE: 

www.sdarec.com  

2010-0189907 

APR 16, 2010 

ASSESSOR'S OFFICE 
1600 Pacific Highway, Suite 103 

San Diego, CA 92101-2480 
Tel. (619)236-3771 * Fax (619)5574056 

11:444M 

' :TOTAL DUE: 0.00 

SERVICES AVAILABLE AT 
OFFICE LOCATIONS 

* Thx Bill•Address Changes 
* Records and Certified Copies: 

Birth/ Marriage/ Death/ Real Estate 
* Fictitious Business.  Names (DBAs) 
* Marriage. Licenses and Ceremonies 
* Assessor Parcel Maps 
* Property Ownership 
* Property Records - 
* Property Values 
* Document Recordings  

SERVICES AVAILABLE ON-LINE AT 
wwvv.sdarcc.com  

* Forms and Applications 
* Frequently Asked Questions (PAQs) 
* Grantor/ Grantee Index 
4' Fictitious Business Names Index (DBAs) 
* Property Sales 
* On-Line Purchases 

Assessor Parcel Maps 
Property Characteristics 
Recorded Documents 



ATTACHMENT 4 

E
X

H
I B

IT
 "A

'' 
C

H
IL

D
R

E
N

'S
 P

O
O

L
 R

O
P

E
 B

A
R

R
IE

R
 

2
0

0
5

 A
er

ia
l 


	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27

